
AGENDA 
SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

December 11, 2024 
 

1.  Call to Order 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Approval of Minutes of November 13, 2024 
4. Approval of Minutes of Special Meeting December 3, 2024 
5.  Correspondence 
6.  Public Comments, Audience Members are allowed 3 minutes to discuss items not on 

the Agenda (5 minutes for groups) 
7.  Approval of Agenda 

 
8.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS        

A) Affordable Housing Updates  
B) Short Term Rental Updates  
C)  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS  

A) Resolution 24-26 to Re-Adopt Ordinance #164 Rezone on 73.5 St. 
B) Resolution 24-27 to Re-Adopt Ordinance #165 Rezone 73rd St. 
C) Approve 2025 BOR Members 
D) Calendar of meeting dates 2025, Board and Planning Commission 
E) Bids for ARPA funds:  Security System, SHARA 
F) Approve appointments for Planning Commission 
G) Resolution for Budget Amendments 
H) Resolution to Certify Road for Road Commission 
I) Letter of Engagement Siegfried Crandall 
J) Pivot Point Agreement approval 
K) Resolution to Support Opposition to MPSC Order 
L) Approval of Marijuana Application Renewals for 2025 
M) Start Rental Ordinance Review 
N)  
 

10. REPORTS 
Airport 
Building/Electrical/Mechanical 
Building Committee  
Fire/Ambulance 
Library 
Park Committee  
Planning Commission 
Roads 
Senior Services 
Water/Sewer Authority 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

11. TREASURER’S REPORT 

12. BOARD COMMENTS  

13. ADJOURNMENT  

 



SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

   MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2024 

 

Present:  Stein, Fisher, Bertorelli, DeGrandchamp, Kiry and Lewandowski 

Absent:  Wiatrowski 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Stein at 7:30 p.m.  

Motion by DeGrandchamp, , supported by Lewandowski, to approve the Minutes 

of the October 9th Regular Meeting as presented.  All voted in favor.  Motion 

carried. 

A copy of an updated contract with our assessor was presented for everyone to 

take home and review. 

Sgt. Carlotto was in attendance to report for SHPD.  Chief Brandon Hinz reported 

for SHAES.  Mr. Quinn, a resident from 73.5 Street gave an update about arsenic 

in their wells.   

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Fisher, to approve the Agenda.  All 

voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Lewandowski, supported by Fisher, to adopt Resolution 24-26 

Adopting Ordinance #164 rezoning property on 73.5 Street.  All voted in favor by 

roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Lewandowski, supported by Kiry, to adoption Resolution 24-27 

Adopting Ordinance #165 rezoning property on 73rd Street.  All voted in favor by 

roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported Fisher, to open the Public Hearing for the 

Applewood Special Assessment District.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Jim Horan 73140 6th Avenue, wants the assessment to be for 10 years, wants 

Cider Court to become a county road after the improvements. 

W.C. Askew called the Road Commission and said the Road Commission will not 

take over that road.  

Tim Cagle 73195 Cider Ct said that residents believed the Road Commission would 

take over the road when completed. 

W.C. Askew once again called the Road Commission, Jim Horan spoke with them 

and they will meet and go over specs to consider taking over the road. 

Unless the Road Commission will take over the road the residents who petitioned 

for the special assessment are no longer interested in getting the repairs 

completed. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Fisher, to close the Public Hearing.  All 

voted in favor.  Motion carried. 



Motion by Lewandowski, supported by DeGrandchamp, to postpone voting on 

the Resolution to move forward with a special assessment district.  All voted in 

favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Fisher, supported by Kiry, to approve Elevate Landscaping’s bid for 

snow removal. All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Lewandowski, to accept the 

recommendation of the Planning Commission and approve the Solar Farm site 

plan and special use by South Haven Affordable Solar.  All voted in favor.  Motion 

carried. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Lewandowski, to approve contracts for 

installation of an ADA door with Pearson Construction for $10,939.45, the 

installation of a generator from Steensma Lawn and Power for $33,043.42, and 

parking lot repairs by J.Allen & Company for $91,700.00 all to be paid for with 

ARPA funds.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Reports from various committees and authorities were received. W.C. Askew was 

in attendance for the Road Commission and Jean Stein reported for the Library. 

Motion by Fisher, supported by Kiry, to approve payment of anticipated bills in 

the amount of $111,031.72.   All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 

 

_________________________               ___________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk                           Ross Stein, Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

   MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2024 

 

Present:  Stein, Fisher, Bertorelli, DeGrandchamp, and Poole 

Absent:  Wiatrowski and Lewandowski 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Stein at 11:30 a.m.  

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Fisher, to approve the Agenda.  All 

voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Poole, to approve Resolution 24-29 to 

set December Board of Review date.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion 

carried. 

Motion by Stein, supported by DeGrandchamp, to terminate all services with Kyle 

Harris and KWH Appraisal Services.  Our attorney is drafting a letter to present.  

Our current assessor is not fulfilling his obligations.  All voted in favor by roll call 

vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Stein, supported DeGrandchamp, to approve the contract with 

Assessing Solutions, with minor detail changes in contract, for township assessing 

work.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by DeGrandchamp, supported by Fisher, to adjourn. 

Meeting adjourned at 12:05 p.m. 

 

_________________________               ___________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk                           Ross Stein, Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



 

SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. ___, 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF SOUTH HAVEN 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP TO REZONE CAIN PROPERTY 

 

A resolution made and adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board of the 

Charter Township of South Haven, County of Van Buren, State of Michigan, held on 

__________ __, 2024. 

PRESENT: ________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:       ________________________________________________________ 

           ________________________________________________________ 

 The following Resolution was offered by ________________________________ and 

seconded by ________________________________. 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 PA 110, the Township 

has authority to adopt and amend zoning ordinances regulating the use of land in the Township; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 4, 

2024 to consider a request to amend the South Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance 

(“Zoning Ordinance”) and change the zoning designation on the zoning district map for the 

following real property: 

Parcel No. 

80-17-011-001-01 

 

V/L 73 ½ Street 

 

THAT PART OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LYING SOUTH OF A 

LINE 812.31 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL TO NORTH SECTION 

LINE OF SECTION 11, TOWN 1 SOUTH, RANGE 17 WEST, NORTH 18 

ACRES OF WEST ½ OF NORTHWEST ¼ OF NORTHEAST ¼. EXCEPT 

HIGHWAY I-196 RIGHT OF WAY. ALSO EXCEPT NORTH 521.24 OF 

WEST 33 FEET FOR RIGHT OF WAY 

 

from its HSC (Highway Service Commercial) zoning designation to CSC (Community Service 

Commercial); and 

 

 WHEREAS, on August 7, 2024, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the 

Application to the Township Board; and  

 WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission transmitted a 

summary of comments received at the hearing and a proposed ordinance to amend the Zoning 



Ordinance, including any recommendations, to the Van Buren County Planning Commission; 

and 

 WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission transmitted a 

summary of comments received at the hearing and copies of zoning maps and recommendations 

to the Township Board; and 

 WHEREAS, the Township Board has determined that amending the Zoning Ordinance, 

as recommended by the Planning Commission, is in the best interests of the health, safety and 

welfare of Township residents. 

 THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven resolves as 

follows: 

1. Ordinance No. _____, Ordinance Amending the Zoning Ordinance of South 

Haven Charter Township to Rezone Cain Property (the "Ordinance"), attached as Exhibit A is 

hereby adopted. 

2. The Ordinance shall be filed with the Township Clerk. 

3. The Township Clerk shall publish the Ordinance or a summary thereof in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the Township within fifteen (15) days. 

4. Any resolutions or portions of resolutions that are inconsistent with this resolution 

are hereby repealed. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN  ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of South 

Haven, Van Buren County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

complete copy of certain proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held 

pursuant to the Open Meetings Act on the ________________, 2024.  

             

     ______________________________________ 

     Brenda Bertorelli 

     Clerk, South Haven Charter Township 

 

 

 

 

 

79676:00005:200769094-1 



 

SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. ___, 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF SOUTH HAVEN 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP TO REZONE STEGMAN PROPERTY 

 

A resolution made and adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board of the 

Charter Township of South Haven, County of Van Buren, State of Michigan, held on 

__________ __, 2024. 

PRESENT: ________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:       ________________________________________________________ 

           ________________________________________________________ 

 The following Resolution was offered by ________________________________ and 

seconded by ________________________________. 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 PA 110, the Township 

has authority to adopt and amend zoning ordinances regulating the use of land in the Township; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 4, 

2024 to consider a request to amend the South Haven Charter Township Zoning Ordinance 

(“Zoning Ordinance”) and change the zoning designation on the zoning district map for the 

following real property: 

Parcel No. 

80-17-002-056-10 

 

01821 73rd St 

 

COM AT THE SE COR OF SW ¼ OF NE ¼ OF SEC, TH N 0 DEG 41’10”W 

ALG E 1/8 L OF SD NE ¼ 550.4’ TO BEG, TH S 88 DEG 00’52”W PAR WITH 

THE E & W ¼ L 355.0’, TH N 0 DEG 41’10”W PAR WITH SD 1/8 L 106.0’, 

TH S 53 DEG 11’02”W 214.09’, TH N 0 DEG 41’10”W PAR WITH SD 1/8 L 

268.48’, TH N 88 DEG 00’52”E PAR WITH SD ¼ L 528’ TO SD 1/8 L, TH S 0 

DEG 41’10”E ALG SD 1/8 L TO BEG. 

 

from its MDR (Medium Density Residential) zoning designation to CSC (Community Service 

Commercial); and 

 

 WHEREAS, on September 4, 2024, the Planning Commission recommended approval of 

the Application to the Township Board; and  

 WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission transmitted a 

summary of comments received at the hearing and a proposed ordinance to amend the Zoning 



Ordinance, including any recommendations, to the Van Buren County Planning Commission; 

and 

 WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission transmitted a 

summary of comments received at the hearing and copies of zoning maps and recommendations 

to the Township Board; and 

 WHEREAS, the Township Board has determined that amending the Zoning Ordinance, 

as recommended by the Planning Commission, is in the best interests of the health, safety and 

welfare of Township residents. 

 THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven resolves as 

follows: 

1. Ordinance No. _____, Ordinance Amending the Zoning Ordinance of South 

Haven Charter Township to Rezone Stegman Property (the "Ordinance"), attached as Exhibit A 

is hereby adopted. 

2. The Ordinance shall be filed with the Township Clerk. 

3. The Township Clerk shall publish the Ordinance or a summary thereof in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the Township within fifteen (15) days. 

4. Any resolutions or portions of resolutions that are inconsistent with this resolution 

are hereby repealed. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 

     ) ss. 

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN  ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of South 

Haven, Van Buren County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

complete copy of certain proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held 

pursuant to the Open Meetings Act on the ________________, 2024.  

             

     ______________________________________ 

     Brenda Bertorelli 

     Clerk, South Haven Charter Township 

 

 

 

 

 

79676:00005:200769094-1 



 

 

 

 

Township Board 

Meeting Schedule 2025 

 

Regular Meetings of the South Haven Charter Township Board will be held on the 2nd 

Wednesday of each month @ 7:30 p.m., at the South Haven Township Hall, 09761 Blue Star 

Memorial Highway (southwest corner of Blue Star & M-140) 

 

January 8th     July 9th 

February 12th     August 13th 

March 12th     September 10th 

April 9th     October 8th 

May 14th     November 12th 

June 11th     December 10th  

  













CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

RESOLUTION NO. 24- 

 

RESOLUTION TO CERTIFY ROAD FOR COUNTY ROAD 

COMMISSION 

 

At a meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of South Haven 

("Township"), Van Buren County, Michigan,  in said Township on the 11th day of December, 2024 

at 7:30 p.m. 

PRESENT:             

            

ABSENT:                   

 The following Resolution was offered by ________________________________ and 

seconded by ________________________________. 

WHEREAS, the Residents of Cider Court in South Haven Township plan to complete road 

repairs; and 

WHEREAS, the Residents of Cider Court would like the road declared a County Road for 

purposes of maintenance and plowing; and 

 IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the South Haven Charter Township Board recommends 

that the roadway situated in Applewood Subdivision in South Haven Township, Van Buren 

County, Michigan be considered for certification by the Board of County Road Commissioners in 

Van Buren County. 

 IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the Resolution shall be served on the Van 

Buren County Road Commission for consideration by its Board. 

 

YEAS:  ____________________________ 

NAYS:  ____________________________  

 

 

THE RESOLUTION WAS DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss.  

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN ) 

 

  

I, Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk of the Charter Township of South Haven, hereby certify this 

to be a true and complete copy of Resolution No. ___, duly adopted at a meeting of the Township 

Board held on the 11th day of December, 2024 at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

              



        

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



















 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 1 

 

PIVOT POINT PARTNERS LLC 

 

SERVICE AND  

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
 

 This Service and License Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of the effective date 

specified in this Agreement by and between Pivot Point Partners LLC (“Pivot Point”), an Ohio 

limited liability company, having a principal place of business at 2497 Shepherd Ct, Powell, Ohio 

43065 and South Haven Twp MI (“Client”).  Collectively, Pivot Point and Client shall be known 

as the Parties.  

 

Subject to the definitions, terms, conditions and provisions referred to herein, the Parties 

mutually agree as follows: 

 

 1. Term.   This Agreement shall commence on __________ (the “Effective Date”) 

and shall be for a period of twelve (12) consecutive months. This Agreement will automatically 

renew at the end of the twelve (12) month period, unless otherwise terminated as set forth in 

Sections 4 or 9, below. 

  

 2. Scope of Services.  Pivot Point shall provide to Client the services listed in (1) Pivot 

Point’s Quote dated 12-2-2024, and any amendments or modifications thereto; and (2) the Scope 

of Services, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. “Services” refers to Pivot Point’s 

Field App Suite, including the Field App Mobile Application, the Field App Administrative Portal 

and other supporting services to be provided by Pivot Point under this Agreement and its 

attachments.   

 

 3. License.  As fully described in the Licensing Agreement, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein, it is the intention of the parties that Client shall receive a non-exclusive, non-

transferrable license to use the Services and Client shall be the primary beneficiary of such 

Services.   

 

 4. Termination.  Either party may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) days 

advance written notice to the other party.  Pivot Point’s obligation to provide Services shall 

automatically cease upon such termination. If Client unilaterally terminates the Agreement, all fees 

paid by Client are non-refundable. If Pivot Point terminates this Agreement, it agrees to refund to 

Client any applicable portion of the annual fee as reasonably determined by Pivot Point, less a 

reasonable charge for Client’s use of the Services prior to such termination. 

 

 5. Payment.  Client agrees to pay Pivot Point all fees as specified in Pivot Point’s 

Quote, as amended or modified and attached hereto. Payment will be due on the 30th calendar day 

after receipt of an invoice from Pivot Point to Client.  Interest on late payments shall be the lesser 

of the maximum amount permitted by law or 2% per month.   

 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 2 

 

 6. Taxes.  All amounts payable by Client are exclusive of any and all federal, state or 

local taxes which may be levied or imposed, now or in the future, with regard to the Services.  

Client shall remain liable for all such taxes even after all other payments have been made by Client, 

and Client agrees that, upon written demand by Pivot Point, it shall promptly pay or reimburse 

Pivot Point for any such taxes.  Client is responsible for providing to Pivot Point any applicable 

exemption certificates.   

 

7. Non-appropriation of Funds (Government Entities only). If Client is a 

governmental entity as defined by its applicable state law and Client’s funds are contingent upon 

the availability of lawful appropriations by its legislative authority, the Services under this 

Agreement that are affected by a lack of funding shall terminate if Client’s legislative authority 

fails at any time to continue funding for the payments or obligations due hereunder. Client will 

have no further obligation to make any payments and will be released from its obligations on the 

date funding expires; however, all fees that have been paid will not be refunded to Client. 

 

 8. Default. Client shall be in default if Client fails to abide by its obligations under the 

Agreement, including the prompt payment of any invoice for Services.  Pivot Point shall be in 

default if Pivot Point fails to substantially provide the Services or otherwise abide by its obligations 

under the Agreement, and such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days following written 

notice thereof from Client to Pivot Point. 

 

 9. Remedies.  If either party is in default, the non-defaulting party may, in addition to 

any other remedies available to it under the Agreement, at law or in equity, do one or more of the 

following: (a) terminate the Agreement; or (b) suspend some or all performance until such time as 

the defaulting party cures said default.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any remedies available to 

Client shall be subject to the provisions and limitations set forth in the Licensing Agreement, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 

10. Governing Law.  This Agreement is not subject to the United Nations Convention 

on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods.   

 

(a) Governmental Entities.  If Client is a governmental entity, the applicable laws of 

Client’s jurisdiction govern this Agreement.   

 

(b) Non-governmental Entities. All questions concerning the validity, meaning or 

enforcement of the Agreement, and all questions relating to the performance thereunder or 

hereunder, shall be judged and resolved in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio. 

 

 11.   Forum Selection.  Unless Client is a governmental entity, the parties agree that, 

except for any restriction with regard to subject matter jurisdiction, any state or federal court 

located in Franklin County, Ohio, shall have jurisdiction to hear and decide any case or controversy 

between Pivot Point and Client, and each party agrees not to bring any action, whether legal or 

equitable, against the other party, except in a state or federal court located in Franklin County, 

Ohio.  Both parties consent to service of process from said courts, in accordance with the rules 

thereof, and waive any objections regarding inconvenient forum, venue or personal jurisdiction. 

 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 3 

 

 12. Jury Waiver.  Pivot Point and Client waive all rights to trial by jury with regard to 

any and all issues that are so triable. 

 

 13. Entire Agreement.  The Agreement, and all applicable attachments listed below, 

constitutes the full and complete understanding and agreement between Pivot Point and Client and 

supersedes all prior negotiations, understandings, and agreements pertaining to the subject matter 

of this Agreement.   

 

 14. Representations. Client represents and warrants to Pivot Point that: (a) the person 

executing this Agreement has the authority to do so as an authorized representative of Client; and 

(b) Client will be bound and abide by all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Pivot Point and Client have agreed to and have executed this 

Service and License Agreement to be effective as of the Effective Date set forth above. 

 

 
CLIENT:      PIVOT POINT: 

 

________________________________  Pivot Point Partners LLC 

(Print Name of Client)  

    

By: __________________________  By: ___________________________ 

       (Signature)            (Signature) 

 

________________________________  ___Brian Kienle____________________ 

(Print Name of Signatory)    (Print Name of Signatory) 

 

________________________________  ___Partner________________________ 

(Title of Signatory)     (Title of Signatory) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachments 

 

• Scope of Services 

• Licensing Agreement  

• Pivot Point Quote(s) (as amended or modified) 

• Pivot Point Product Description 

 

 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 4 

 

Scope of Services 
(MICHIGAN) 

 

 

I. Client Name:   South Haven Twp, MI 

 

 Business Unit:  Assessor’s Office 

 

 

II. Scope: 

 

The goal of this collaboration is to provide a mobile application to assist Client and its 

business unit with appraisal field work. Presently, a majority of the field work is completed with 

pen and paper methods and there is a significant delay in getting updated sketches, images, and 

attribute changes from field personnel back into the Computer-Assisted Mass Appraisal 

(“CAMA”) system. After implementing Pivot Point’s Field App Suite, Client will gain efficiencies 

in organizing the field work, completing the field work, and getting updated information back into 

CAMA for use. Images will be georeferenced and will prove to be a valuable asset through 

mapping and GIS technologies already being used.  

 

*See attached “Field App Product Description” for additional details on application functionality 

 

 

III. Services to be Provided by Pivot Point: 

 

Provide BS&A Interface 

 

Pivot Point has developed a custom interface for Client that is compatible with BS&A 

CAMA system for use in the State of Michigan. This interface will allow Client to easily import 

parcel information from the BS&A’s CAMA system for use in our Field App Suite. Pivot Point’s 

Field App Suite also includes export functionality to allow pictures, marked up sketches, and 

parcel attribute edits (the “Work”) created with the Field App into XML.  Client will be responsible 

to ensure the Work can be imported back into BS&A’s CAMA system.  

 

Deploy Field App Solution to Client  

 

Pivot Point will work with Client to deploy our Field App for Client’s internal business 

purposes only, including tax assessment and property appraisals. The Field App Mobile 

Application works on iOS, Android, and Windows devices with unlimited seats made available as 

outlined in our Licensing Agreement. 

 

IV. Additions, Limitations and Clarifications: 

 

Data, software, and hardware requirements: 

 

A. Data: 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 5 

 

 

1. Client agrees to provide access to the following data elements to Pivot Point for use in the 

Field App Suite: 

• County Parcel Feature Map Service with Parcel Number attribute (required for 

mapping and location functionality) 

• Access to an ESRI web map service (typically aerial imagery) for generation of Fast 

Maps. Client is responsible for maintaining this site with current parcel boundaries 

and any additional supporting layers. (required for offline Fast Maps) 

• Provide a dedicated ESRI ArcGIS Online Creator account with enough credits to 

upload a work order status layer, image point locations, and breadcrumb GPS points 

to the Client’s organization. (required for map-based workflow) 

 

2. To get CAMA information into the workflow, BS&A will provide the following data 

elements to Pivot Point for use in the Field App on behalf of the Client through a custom 

Pivot Point Export: 

• Simple Export for all records 

o Parcel Number (primary key) 

o Owner information 

o Full address including city and state 

• Detailed Export for parcels designated for field visit 

o Parcel Number (primary key) 

o Existing Property Photos in jpg format 

o Existing Property Sketches in png format 

o Additional property characteristic attributes 

 

B. Software: 

 

Since Pivot Point’s administrative functions are completed through a web interface, Client 

shall ensure it has the latest version of the following web browsers (subject to change as new 

operating systems and versions are released by third parties): 

 

• Chrome by Google 

• Firefox by Mozilla 

• Microsoft Edge by Microsoft 

 

Otherwise, Pivot Point’s warranties may not apply. 

 

C. Hardware: 

 

Currently, Pivot Point’s Field App Suite runs on iOS, Android, and Windows operating 

systems. Client shall ensure it has the latest version of these operating systems installed on devices 

used by its authorized employees, agents or users (subject to change as new operating systems and 

versions are released by third parties).  The following devices are currently supported by Pivot 

Point: 

 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 6 

 

• Apple devices running iOS 12 or later 

• Android devices running version 10 or later 

• Windows devices running 10 or later 

 

 

V. Technical Steps and Milestones: 

 

1. Client provides data element requirements outlined in section IV  

2. Pivot Point provides Administrator web site credentials to Client’s authorized 

representative  

3. Client uploads CAMA to Pivot Point Admin site 

4. Client downloads Field App on various devices from their respective online app stores 

5. Pivot Point provides onsite training 

6. Client begins using Field App and Admin website 

 

 

 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 7 

 

Rev. 2024 

 
LICENSING AGREEMENT 

 
 

I. Introduction. 

 

 1.01 Definitions.  As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth in this 

Section 1.01, unless the context otherwise clearly requires: 

 

 (a) Pivot Point Partners LLC shall be referred to as “Pivot Point”, “we”, “our” or similar 

phrases. 

 (b)  “Client”, “you”, “your” and similar phrases refer to a person or entity to whom Services 

are provided, and includes Client’s authorized employees, agents and users.   

 (c) “Services” means Pivot Point’s Field App Suite (the “Suite”), which includes the Field 

App Mobile Application, the Field App Administrative Portal website (currently 

https://field.pivotpoint.us) (the “Website”), proprietary software, and supporting services 

to be provided by Pivot Point to Client, as set forth in the Scope of Services.     

 (d) “Agreement” shall mean Pivot Point’s Purchase Order(s), Scope of Services and this 

Licensing Agreement by and between Pivot Point and Client, including any exhibits 

attached thereto or made a part thereof.  In circumstances where a third-party has provided 

products or services through a separate license with respect to the Services, the term 

“Agreement” shall include the written contract or record by and between Pivot Point and 

such third party as it relates to the Services. 

 (e) “Business Unit” means the specific governmental office, division or operations unit 

identified in the Scope of Services authorized to use the Services.  

(f) “Licensed Software” means the proprietary software of Pivot Point Partners LLC that 

supports Pivot Point’s Services.   

 

 1.02 Changes and Modifications.  This Licensing Agreement may be updated, modified or 

changed, from time to time, by Pivot Point, and posting such changes to the Website shall be sufficient 

notice thereof to our Clients.  If you do not agree to be bound by the Licensing Agreement, you shall 

suspend using our Services and notify us, in writing, of such fact immediately so that appropriate 

adjustments may be made.   

 

 1.03 Privacy Policy.  By entering to this Agreement, Client also agrees to adhere to the terms of 

Pivot Point’s privacy policy (http://pivotpoint.us/privacy-policy). 

 

II. Software Licensing and Support.   

   

 2.01 Grant of License.  Pivot Point hereby grants to Client a non-exclusive, non-transferrable, 

non-sublicensable, non-assignable, restricted license to use the Services and related Licensed Software for 

internal business purposes only.  If you download software from our Field App, the software (including all 

files and images contained in or generated by the software), and accompanying data are deemed to be 

licensed to you by Pivot Point (or any third party that may have created it) and is considered “Licensed 

Software” under this Licensing Agreement.   Neither title nor intellectual property rights are transferred to 

you, but remain with Pivot Point or such other third parties, who own full and complete title. This License 

Agreement provides to you an unlimited number of seats; however, such seats are to be used only by your 

authorized employees and users. 

 

https://field.pivotpoint.us/
http://pivotpoint.us/privacy-policy


 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 8 

 

 2.02 Prohibited Uses. The Licensed Software, material and data are provided for lawful 

purposes only. Software, material and data from Pivot Point and any website owned, operated, licensed, 

sublicensed or controlled by Pivot Point may not be copied or distributed, or republished, uploaded, posted 

or transmitted, in any way, without the prior written consent of Pivot Point.  Modification or use of the 

materials for any other purpose violates the intellectual property rights of Pivot Point. You may not resell, 

decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble or otherwise convert the Licensed Software to a human 

perceivable form.  You may not use Pivot Point’s Licensed Software for or in connection with offering any 

third-party product or service not authorized or approved by Pivot Point.   Additionally, if any third-party 

software is provided to you by or through Pivot Point, you shall be subject to all licenses, terms, limitations 

and requirements of such third-party with respect to its software.  

 

2.03 Designated Hardware.  Client agrees to deploy or install the Services and the Licensed 

Software on hardware meeting or exceeding the requirement as specified in the Scope of Services or 

otherwise recommended by Pivot Point.  Pivot Point will only support hardware that has undergone 

validation testing.  If Client uses non-supported hardware, Pivot Point cannot guarantee it can provide the 

same level of functionality as supported and validated hardware. Client shall not install, download or 

operate the Licensed Software on hardware not owned by or under the control of Client. 

 

2.04 Data Collection. Client will remain the owner of any data exported, extracted, or otherwise 

delivered from their possession to Pivot Point.  Pivot Point will abide by the terms of its Privacy Policy 

found at http://pivotpoint.us/privacy-policy regarding the collection, use and sharing of personally 

identifiable information.  Nevertheless, Pivot Point may use tools, scripts, software, and utilities 

(collectively, the “tools”) to monitor and administer the Services and to help resolve your service requests.  

The tools will not collect, report or store any of your data residing in the service production environment, 

except as necessary to troubleshoot service requests or other problems in the service.  Data collected by the 

tools (excluding production data) may also be used to assist in managing product and service portfolio and 

for license management. 

 

2.05 Pre-Release Product - Additional Terms. If the Services received by Client are pre-

commercial release or beta Software (“Pre-release Software”), then this Section 2.05 applies. To the extent 

that any provision in this Section 2.05 is in conflict with any other term or condition, this Section 2.05 shall 

supersede such other terms and conditions with respect to the Pre-release Software, but only to the extent 

necessary to resolve the conflict. Client acknowledges that the Services are a pre-release version, does not 

represent a final product from Pivot Point, and may contain bugs, errors and other problems that could 

cause system or other failures and data loss. CONSEQUENTLY, THE PRE-RELEASE SOFTWARE IS 

PROVIDED TO YOU “AS-IS” AND WITH ALL FAULTS, AND PIVOT POINT EXPRESSLY 

DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OR LIABILITY OBLIGATIONS TO YOU OF ANY KIND, 

EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY. WHERE LEGAL LIABILITY CANNOT BE EXCLUDED 

FOR PRE-RELEASE SOFTWARE, BUT MAY LIMIT PIVOT POINT’S TOTAL LIABILITY TO YOU 

OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT (AND THAT OF ITS SUPPLIERS) AND 

SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE SUM OF FIFTY DOLLARS (U.S. $50) IN TOTAL. You acknowledge 

that Pivot Point has not promised or guaranteed to you that Pre-release Software will be announced or made 

available to anyone in the future, that Pivot Point has no express or implied obligation to you to announce 

or introduce the Pre-release Software and that Pivot Point may not introduce a product similar to or 

compatible with the Pre-release Software. Accordingly, you acknowledge that any research or development 

that you perform regarding the Pre-release Software or any product associated with the Pre-release Software 

is done entirely at your own risk. If you have been provided the Pre-release Software pursuant to a separate 

written agreement, your use of such Software is governed by such agreement. You may not sublicense, 

lease, loan, rent, distribute or otherwise transfer the Pre-release Software. Upon receipt of a later unreleased 

version of the Pre-release Software or release by Pivot Point of a publicly released commercial version of 

http://pivotpoint.us/privacy-policy


 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 9 

 

the Services, whether as a stand-alone product or as part of a larger product, you agree to return or destroy 

all earlier Pre-release Software received from Pivot Point and to abide by this Licensing Agreement for any 

such later versions of the Pre-release Software. If you provide any feedback or suggestions to Pivot Point 

regarding the Pre-release Software, Pivot Point will own all right, title, and interest in and to the feedback 

and/or suggestions. Pivot Point will be entitled to use the feedback and/or suggestions without restriction, 

without compensation to you and without your prior approval. You hereby irrevocably assign to Pivot Point 

all right, title, and interest in and to the feedback and/or suggestions and agree to provide Pivot Point any 

assistance it may require to document, perfect, and maintain its rights in the feedback and/or suggestions. 

 

2.06  Maintenance and Support. Pivot Point shall provide maintenance and support services to 

maintain the Services and Licensed Software and to provide technical support, software updates, and other 

services as set forth in the Scope of Services. Unless otherwise set forth in an applicable Scope of Services, 

support calls for service will be provided during regular business hours (8:00am-4:30pm EST Monday 

through Friday), and will be responded to in a maximum of one (1) business day for standard inquiries and 

four (4) hours for emergency inquiries received during regular business hours; or otherwise resolved as 

soon as reasonably possible if received before or after regular business hours.  

 

III. Termination. 

 

 3.01 Cooperation After Termination.  Pivot Point shall reasonably cooperate with Client 

following the termination of the Agreement regarding Client’s information, provided that Client agrees to 

reasonably compensate Pivot Point for such services.  Pivot Point reserves the right to require advance 

payment for all or some of such services.  Additionally, such services shall be subject to this Licensing 

Agreement.  Client shall take whatever actions are required to terminate the use of Services by Client, and 

shall be liable to Pivot Point for the intended or unintended use of such Services after termination, as 

reasonably determined by Pivot Point.  Any such amounts shall be paid by Client in accordance with Section 

3.01, above.  

  

IV.  Warranties; Liability; Indemnity. 

 

 4.01 Express Limited Warranty Provided by Pivot Point.  Pivot Point warrants to Client that it 

will perform the Services in substantial compliance with the Scope of Services and this Licensing 

Agreement.   

 

 4.02 Client’s Remedies Under the Warranty.  The exclusive remedy of Client with regard to the 

warranty set forth in Section 4.01, and Pivot Point’s liability to Client with regard to such warranty, is 

limited, at Pivot Point’s option, to: (a) the repair or replacement of that portion of the Services which does 

not conform with the warranty, as reasonably determined by Pivot Point; or (b) a refund of the applicable 

portion of the Fee, as reasonably determined by Pivot Point.  For the avoidance of doubt, the aggregate 

liability amount set forth in the last sentence of Section 4.05 also shall limit Client’s remedies with respect 

to a breach of warranty. 

 

 4.03 Exclusions from Pivot Point’s Express Warranty.  The warranty set forth in 4.01 shall not 

cover: (a) Client’s failure to provide or maintain any standard or required versions of software or operating 

systems and maintenance specifications; (b) modifications, alterations or changes made by anyone other 

than Pivot Point; (c) damage or destruction due to any hazard coverable under the standard form of fire and 

extended coverage insurance policy issued in the state where Client is located; or (d) failure of the Client 

to abide by its obligations under the Agreement. 

 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 10 

 

 4.04 Exclusion of Implied Warranties.  Except for the warranty set forth in Section 4.01, 

there are no other warranties with regard to the Services, or any other software, goods or services 

licensed, sold or provided by Pivot Point to Client.  MORE PARTICULARLY, BUT NOT BY WAY 

OF LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 

A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED.   

 

 4.05 Limitation of Liability.  The fees charged by Pivot Point for the Services are based 

upon the allocation of risks and benefits, as set forth in this Licensing Agreement.  Therefore, except 

for the warranty set forth in Section 4.01 (and subject to the limitations set forth in Sections 4.02 and 

4.03), Client agrees that Pivot Point shall not be liable to Client, Client’s authorized employees, agents 

and users of the Services or to any other party for direct, indirect, consequential or economic 

damages due to any reason or cause whatsoever, including, the failure or malfunction of Client’s 

systems or any other software, goods or services provided by Pivot Point to Client.  Also, Pivot Point 

shall not be liable to Client or any third party with respect to the loss or damage to data or 

information.  Finally, Client agrees to limit the liability of Pivot Point, its officers, employees, agents, 

subcontractors, independent contractors, third party vendors, agents, authorized representatives 

and resellers to Client or any third party for all claims and causes, including negligence, breach of 

warranty (including the warranty set forth in Section 4.01), breach of contract, errors, omissions or 

strict liability, arising out of or any way related to the Services so as to not exceed, in the aggregate, 

all applicable fees paid by Client or $10,000, whichever is less.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 

limitations of liability referred to in this Section 4.05 shall be increased by an amount equal to any 

insurance coverage with respect to Pivot Point’s errors and omissions actually available at the time 

of settlement or judgment. 

 

 4.06 Application to Agents.  In situations where Services are provided, in whole or in part, 

pursuant to a written contract or record between Pivot Point and an agent or authorized representative of 

Client, the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the limitations on claims, remedies and 

liabilities set forth in this Section 4, also shall apply to all such parties.  

 

 4.07 Indemnity.  Pivot Point will indemnify and defend Client, at Pivot Point’s expense, against 

any claim or any action brought, and will pay any and all costs, liabilities, expenses, settlements, or 

judgments finally awarded in favor of a third party against Client, based upon any claim that the Licensed 

Software infringes any valid U.S. patent, copyright or trade secret, provided that Client:  (i) promptly 

notifies Pivot Point in writing of any such claim; (ii) gives Pivot Point full authority and control of the 

settlement and defense of the claim; (iii) has not made any admission or offer to settle and (iv) fully 

cooperates with Pivot Point in the defense of such claims, including providing adequate assistance and 

information.  The indemnity provided hereunder shall not apply to amounts paid in settlement of any claim 

if such settlement is made without Pivot Point’s prior written consent. 

 

 4.08 This indemnity does not apply to, and Pivot Point will have no obligation to Client for, any 

infringement claim that arises from: (i) any modification to the Licensed Software by anyone other than 

Pivot Point unless approved in writing by Pivot Point; (ii) modifications made by Pivot Point at Client’s 

request in compliance with Client’s design, specifications or instructions; (iii) use of the Licensed Software 

other than as specified in this Agreement or in the applicable documentation; (iv) use of the Licensed 

Software in conjunction with third-party software, hardware or data other than that with which the Licensed 

Software is specifically designed to be used, solely as expressly specified in the documentation or this 

Agreement, or (v) use of a prior version of the Licensed Software, if the infringement claim could have 

been avoided by the use of the current version of the Licensed Software. 

 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 11 

 

 4.09 If an infringement claim arises, or in Pivot Point’s reasonable opinion is likely to arise, 

Pivot Point may, at its own expense and in its own discretion, obtain for Client the right to continue using 

the Licensed Software, modify the Licensed Software to make it non-infringing, or substitute other 

Licensed Software of substantially similar capability and functionality.  If none of these options are 

reasonably available to Pivot Point, Pivot Point may terminate the License for the infringing Licensed 

Software and refund to Client the annual fee paid for the infringing Licensed Software, less a reasonable 

charge for Client’s use of the Licensed Software prior to such termination.  THIS SECTION 4 STATES 

THE ENTIRE OBLIGATION OF PIVOT POINT AND THE EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES OF CLIENT 

WITH RESPECT TO ANY CLAIMS OF INFRINGMENT OR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 

VIOLATIONS. 

 

V. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 

 5.01 Assignment.  The rights and obligations under the Agreement are not assignable by Client 

without the prior written consent of Pivot Point, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

Acceptance of payment or performance by any other party shall not be deemed to be a consent by Pivot 

Point to an assignment.  No assignment shall relieve Client of its liability hereunder unless Pivot Point 

otherwise agrees in writing when granting such consent.  Subject to the provisions set forth above, the 

Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the legal representatives, successors and assigns 

of any or all of the parties hereto. 

 

 5.02 Non-Waiver.  No provision of the Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived unless 

such waiver is in writing and signed by the party affected thereby. 

 

 5.03 Severability.  If any clause or provision contained in the Agreement is held to be illegal, 

invalid or unenforceable, under any present or future law, the remaining terms hereof shall not be affected 

thereby.  In lieu of such clause or provision held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable there shall be added 

a clause or provision as similar in terms as possible which shall be legal, valid and enforceable. 

 

 5.04 Compliance with Law.  The use by Client and Client’s authorized employees, agents and 

users of the Services, including the Suite, shall be in compliance with all applicable laws, statutes, 

ordinances and governmental regulations.  Client shall indemnify, defend and hold Pivot Point harmless 

from any cost, expense, demand, claim, fine, action, cause of action or other liability arising out of or related 

to the unlawful use of the Services by Client or its authorized employees, agents or users. 

 

          5.05 Future Dealings.  This Licensing Agreement shall be applicable to all future transactions 

and dealings between Pivot Point and Client, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by both Pivot Point and 

Client.   

 

 5.06 Confidentiality.  In the course of negotiating, implementing and providing services under 

the Agreement, Pivot Point and Client may reveal to each other information regarding business data, 

research, development, manufacturing, clients, vendors, agents, employees, marketing plans, business 

plans, trade practices, financial information and related matters that are confidential and proprietary.  All 

of such information is hereinafter referred to as “Confidential Information”.  All Confidential Information 

shall be deemed to be confidential and proprietary information belonging to the disclosing party and shall 

be maintained by receiving party in confidence.  The parties shall familiarize their respective officers, 

agents and employees that have access to Confidential Information, or conducting work in relation thereto, 

with the obligations hereunder.  Each party shall take all reasonable precautions, including the 

establishment of appropriate procedures and disciplines, to safeguard the confidential nature of any 

Confidential Information.  The disclosure of Confidential Information between the parties hereunder shall 



 

  

PIVOT POINT LICENSE AGREEMENT 12 

 

not be construed as granting either a license under any intellectual property rights or applications therefor, 

or any right of ownership or use of any kind therein.  All Confidential Information shall remain the property 

of the party disclosing the same.  Confidential Information shall not include any information that: (a) is or 

becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of a violation of the obligations hereunder; 

(b) was in a party’s possession prior to disclosure by the other party; or (c) was rightfully acquired from a 

third party who was lawfully in possession of such information and was under no obligation to maintain its 

confidentiality. 

 

5.07 Rules of Construction. Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, the following rules of 

construction shall apply to this Licensing Agreement: 

 

 (a) Terms that imply gender shall apply to all genders.  All references to the singular shall be 

deemed to include the plural, and all references to the plural shall be deemed to include the 

singular. 

 

 (b) Headings are included solely for purposes of reference and shall be ignored in construing 

the provisions of this Licensing Agreement. 

 

 (c) “Herein”, “hereto”, “hereof” and words of similar import refer to this Licensing 

Agreement. 

 

 (d) The word “and” connotes “each and every”, and the word “or” connotes “any one or more”. 

 

 (e) The word “including”, is deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation”. 

 

 (f) Any reference to the Agreement, Scope of Services, this Licensing Agreement or other 

document or record refers to that Agreement, Scope of Services, Licensing Agreement or 

other document or record as amended, modified or restated, from time to time. 

 

 (g) Any reference to a person or entity shall be construed as a reference to that person or 

entity’s successors, affiliates, assigns, heirs, personal representatives, agents or authorized 

representatives. 

 

 (h) In the event of a direct conflict between the Scope of Services and this Licensing 

Agreement, the terms of the Scope of Services shall control.  In the event of a conflict 

between this Licensing Agreement and any written contract or record between Client and 

a third party of the Services, this Licensing Agreement shall control. 

 

 



South Haven Twp MI 2367-001

Assessor's Office 2367

12/2/2024

4/1/2025

Quantity Unit Cost Per Total

2,477 Parcel $0.10 $247.70

Total $247.70

Quantity Unit Cost Per Total

2,477 Parcel $0.35 $866.95

1 5GB $0.00 $0.00

0 10GB $80.00 $0.00

0 50GB $300.00 $0.00

0 100GB $500.00 $0.00

Total $866.95

Quantity Unit Cost Per Total

1 - $0.00 $0.00

0 Hours $140.00 $0.00

0 Hours $200.00 $0.00

0 - $500.00 $0.00

0 - $500.00 $0.00

Total $0.00

Proposal Notes: $1,114.65

-$247.70

-$247.70

$866.95

$866.95
Plus tax if entity is NOT tax exempt

1 Year

Authorized By* Date

Custom Software Development hours to build interface

Assistance setting up AGOL site for use with App

Developer Services (Hourly)

Mapping and GIS functionality are dependent on

provided GIS data and web mapping services

Quote based on 2,477 real properties.                                        

Includes 5 GB of Cloud Space

First Year Total

Annual Recurring Total

New Customer Setup Discount (100%)

First Year Sub-Total  (license + setup fees)

Total Discounts & Credits

Quote Number
Customer ID

Proposal Date

Pricing Valid Before

Field App Solution Proposal                                                                                                                         
Contains Confidential Information

2497 Shepherd Ct, Powell OH 43065

(614) 323-5099  sales@pivotpoint.us

www.PivotPoint.us

Cloud Storage- Incld w/Field App

Basic Support (included no cost) 4 hours remote training. 16 hrs remote support

Field App Solution License Fee Search by address, parcel, or location CAMA integration

to manage parcels marked for field review. Website to assign, 

track, and review parcels for field visits. Annotate sketches, 

record cards and maps. Unlimited seats for iOS, Android, and 

Microsoft

License Term:

Prepared For 

Additional Onsite Support Additional day of onsite support/training

Additional Remote Support 8 hours of additional remote support

Professional Service Fees

Item Name Description

GIS Services (Hourly)

See attached Scope of Services, Product Description

and License Agreement

Cloud Storage Space 

Cloud Storage- Additional 100 GB 100 GB additional Cloud Storage Space 

Cloud Storage- Additional 50 GB 50 GB additional Cloud Storage Space 

Cloud Storage- Additional 10 GB 10 GB additional Cloud Storage Space 

Annual License, Maintenance & Cloud Storage Costs 

Item Name Description

Initial Setup Costs

Item Name Description

Field App Solution Setup Setup fee to import and configure images, sketches, maps 

and advanced attribution



South Haven Charter Township 

Van Buren County, Michigan  

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT LOCAL CONTROL AND CLAIM OF APPEAL AGAINST 

MICHIGAN PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ORDER 

 At a meeting of the Township Board of the Township of South Haven Charter (the 

“Township”), Van Buren County, Michigan, held on December 10, 2024, located at 09761 Blue 

Star Highway at 7:30 P.M. 

 PRESENT: __________________________________________________________ 

 ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________ 

 The following resolution was offered by ___________________ and supported by 

_____________________.  

 WHEREAS, the Township supports state policies that maintain and advance local control; 

and 

WHEREAS, the State of Michigan has adopted policies and introduced legislation that 

attempts to further reduce local control in key areas affecting unique interests in local communities; 

and 

WHEREAS, media reports describe ongoing efforts by interested groups to push for the 

further erosion of local control; and 

WHEREAS, in 2023, the State of Michigan adopted Public Act 233 of 2023 (“PA 233”); 

and  

WHEREAS, only under limited circumstances, PA 233 confers powers and duties to the 

Public Service Commission (“PSC”) regarding the siting of utility-scale solar energy facilities, 

wind energy facilities, and energy storage facilities allowing developers to bypass local zoning 

authorities when proposing qualifying developments; and 

WHEREAS, the PSC issued an order on October 10, 2024 (the “Order”) implementing 

the provisions of Public Act 233 of 2023 (“PA 233”); and  

 WHEREAS, the Order attempts to vastly expand the PSC’s limited and enumerated 

jurisdiction in PA 233 and is both unlawful and unreasonable; and 

WHEREAS, the Order is unlawful and unreasonable because, among other reasons: (1) 

the PSC’s issuance of the Order violates the Administrative Procedures Act, MCL 24.201 et seq., 

and (2) the Order unlawfully and unreasonably redefines key terms and concepts and creates 



processes and procedures that violate the Legislature’s express and unambiguous intent for local 

input in the regulation of energy facilities; and  

WHEREAS, a coalition of Michigan Municipalities timely filed a claim of appeal from 

the Order on November 8, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the window to appeal the Order was merely 30 days, during which conducting 

a general election and other business contributed to the Township’s inability to hold a meeting 

during which it could consider and vote to join the appeal; and 

WHEREAS, the Township supports the coalition of Michigan Municipalities in their 

efforts to protect local control in the regulation of energy facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Township would have joined the appeal if it was able to hold a meeting 

before the deadline to join; and  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Township of South Haven Charter, Van 

Buren County, Michigan, resolves its unequivocable support of local control and the coalition of 

Michigan Municipalities that have filed an appeal from the Order.  

 

 

YEAS: ____________________________________________ 

NAYS: ____________________________________________ 

ABSENT: __________________________________________ 

THE RESOLUTION WAS DECLARED ADOPTED. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) 

COUNTY OF ________ ) 

 

I, Brenda Bertorelli, the duly elected Clerk of the Township of South Haven Charter DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain proceedings taken 

by the Township Board of the Township of South Haven Charter at a meeting held on the 11th day 

of December, 2024, at 7:30 P.M. 

      ________________________________ 

      Clerk, Brenda Bertorelli 

South Haven Township Clerk 
 




































	December Agenda
	November 2024
	December 3 2024 Special Meeting
	Resolution to Adopt Ordinance (Cain)(200986626.1) 164
	Resolution to Adopt Ordinance (Stegman) 165
	Board Meeting Schedule 2025
	Door Locks Security System Bid
	Budget Amendments
	Resolution for certification of road
	Siegfried Crandall Letter of Engagement
	Pivot Point.Service Agreement
	PivotPoint_quote__SouthHaventTWPMI_12-2-2024
	Resolution against MPSCC
	Marijuana Dispensary Application
	STR Ordinance Review
	MTS Services-Dec Permits
	PC Draft Minutes of November 6
	invoices for december

